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IN UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN 

 
T.C. DEVELOPMENT & DESIGN, INC.  ) 
DBA CONDOR PRODUCTS,    )  
   ) 
   Plaintiff,   )   
       ) 
 v.      ) Civil Action No. 07-C-0861-CNC 
       ) 
DISCOUNT RAMPS.COM LLC, JOEL   ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
LEDERHAUSE, AIMEE LEDERHAUSE,              ) 
JARED NORTHEY DBA RAMP                ) 
CONNECTION, AND ERT CHOCKS LLC  ) 
       ) 
   Defendants.   ) 
  
 

THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND 
 
 Plaintiff T.C. Development and Design, Inc. by and through its attorneys, complains against 

defendants Discount Ramps.com, LLC, Joel Lederhause, Aimee Lederhause, Jared Northey d/b/a 

Ramp Connection, and ERT Chocks LLC as follows:  

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 1. This is a civil action, arising under the Patent Laws of the United States (35 

U.S.C. § 1 et seq.), claiming patent infringement.   

 2. This is also an action for trademark infringement, unfair competition, and false 

advertising brought under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et seq., and for unfair competition 

and deceptive trade practices brought under the statutory and common law of the State of 

Wisconsin.   

 3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction for the federal claims set out in this 

complaint under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1338(a) and (b) and 1367.   

 4. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c) and 1400(b).   
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PARTIES 

 5. Plaintiff T.C. Development and Design, Inc. d/b/a Condor Products (“T.C. 

Development”) is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois 

with a principal place of business at 210 W. Stephanie Dr., Cortland, IL 60112.   

 6. Defendant Discount Ramps.com, LLC (“Discount Ramps”) is a Wisconsin limited 

liability company with a principal place of business at 760 S. Indiana Avenue, West Bend, 

Wisconsin.   

 7. Defendant Aimee Lederhause is an individual residing at 1470 Pamme Ct., West 

Bend, Wisconsin 53090-1355.  Aimee Lederhause is the registered agent for Discount Ramps 

and is listed as a member of Discount Ramps.   

 8. Defendant Joel Lederhause is an individual residing at 1470 Pamme Ct., West 

Bend, Wisconsin 53090-1355.  Joel and Aimee Lederhause will be collectively referred to as 

“Lederhause.”   

 9. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Aimee Lederhause and Joel Lederhause are the owners of 

Discount Ramps and exercise primary control over the operations of Discount Ramps.   

 10. Upon information and belief, after a reasonable opportunity for further 

investigation and/or discovery, there is likely to be evidentiary support that Lederhause has 

knowledge of and actively participated in, supervised and was personally responsible for the 

creation, design, development, use, sale and/or offer for sale of the infringing wheel chock 

designs and/or has a direct financial interest in such activities.   

 11. Upon information and belief, after a reasonable opportunity for further 

investigation and/or discovery, there is likely to be evidentiary support that Lederhause had 

knowledge of and actively participated in, supervised and was personally responsible for the 

Case 2:07-cv-00861-CNC   Filed 03/14/12   Page 3 of 54   Document 115-1Case 2:07-cv-00861-CNC   Filed 05/24/12   Page 2 of 53   Document 118



3 
CHI-15812-1 

development and implementation of the improper and illegal use of Plaintiff’s registered 

trademark as fully set forth below, and/or has a direct financial interest in such activities.   

 12. Jared Northey (“Northey”) is an individual residing at 6624 Catawba Drive, 

Acworth, Georgia 30102.  Northey was listed as the registered agent for the now dissolved  

Ramp Connection LLC.  Northey is also listed in advertisements for Ramp Connection and is the 

registered owner of the domain name www.rampconnection.com.   

 13. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Northey is doing business as Ramp Connection.   Ramp 

Connection lists West Bend, Wisconsin as one of its business locations.  The only facsimile 

number listed at www.rampconnection.com is a Wisconsin phone number.   

 14. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Northey offers for sale and sells products, including the 

infringing products, primarily via the Internet.  After a reasonable opportunity for further 

investigation or discovery, there is likely to be evidentiary support that Northey targets its web 

based advertising and sales activities to every state in the United States, including Wisconsin.   

 15. Upon information and belief, after a reasonable opportunity for further 

investigation and/or discovery, there is likely to be evidentiary support that Janesz had 

knowledge of and actively participated in, supervised and was personally responsible for the 

creation, design, development, use, sale and/or offer for sale of infringing wheel chock designs, 

and/or has a direct financial interest in such activities.   

 16. ERT Chocks, LLC (“ERT Chocks”) is an Ohio limited liability company with a 

registered address at 1375 E. 9th St., Fl. 9th, Cleveland, OH 44114-1739. 

 17. ERT Chocks is the manufacturer of wheel chocks that it has sold in this District to 

at least Defendant Discount Ramps.      
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 18. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that each of the Defendants was aware of the patents owned by 

Plaintiff and that it knowingly and willfully manufactured, used, sold and offered for sale 

products that directly copied and infringed the U.S. Patents owned by Plaintiff.   

 19. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Discount Ramps, which is a Wisconsin 

limited liability company with its principal place of business in Wisconsin, in this district.   

 20. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Lederhauses, who reside and do 

business in Wisconsin, in this district.   

 21. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Northey because after a reasonable 

opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely to be evidentiary support that 

Northey has and continues to transact business in this judicial district including the offer for sale 

and sale of the infringing product.   

 22. This Court has personal jurisdiction over ERT Chocks because after a reasonable 

opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely to be evidentiary support that 

ERT Chocks has and continues to transact business in this judicial district, including the offer for 

sale and sale of the infringing products.   

PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

COUNT I 
Infringement of U.S. Re-Issue Patent No. RE42,971 

 
 23. Paragraphs 1-22 are incorporated herein by reference.   

 24. T.C. Development is the owner by assignment of United States Re-Issue Patent 

No. RE42,971 (“the ’971 patent”), dated November 29, 2011.  A copy of the ’971 patent is 

attached to this complaint as Exhibit A.   

 25. Discount Ramps has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of 
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motorcycle wheel chocks including the Black Widow Wheel Chock and several other models of 

wheel chocks and will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel 

chocks.   

 26. Lederhause has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of motorcycle 

wheel chocks including the Black Widow Wheel Chock and several other models of wheel 

chocks and will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel chocks.   

 27. Northey  has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of motorcycle wheel 

chocks including the Black Widow Wheel Chock and several other models of wheel chocks and 

will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel chocks.   

 28. ERT Chocks has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of motorcycle 

wheel chocks and will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel chocks.  

 29. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely to 

be evidentiary support that Defendants have directly infringed and have actively induced 

infringement of the ‘971 patent by reason of said offer for sale and sale of said wheel chocks.   

 30. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely to 

be evidentiary support that Defendants’ infringement of the ‘971 patent has been deliberate and 

willful.   

 31. By reason of the infringement by Defendants alleged herein, T.C. Development has 

been and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless said infringement is enjoined by this Court.  

COUNT II 
Infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,575,310 

 
 32. Paragraphs 1-22 are incorporated herein by reference.   

 33. T.C. Development is the owner by assignment of United States Patent No. 

6,575,310 (“the ‘310 patent”), which was duly and legally issued on June 10, 2003 for an 
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invention entitled Motorcycle Lift.  A reexamination certificate was issued for the “310 patent on 

August 10, 2010.  T.C. Development has the right to bring this action and recover for past 

infringement of T.C. Development’s ‘310 patent and to enjoin future infringement thereof.  A 

copy of T.C. Development’s patent is attached to this complaint as Exhibit B and is incorporated 

herein by reference.   

 34. Discount Ramps has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of 

motorcycle wheel chocks including the Black Widow Wheel Chock and several other models of 

wheel chocks and will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel 

chocks.   

 35. Lederhause has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of motorcycle 

wheel chocks including the Black Widow Wheel Chock and several other models of wheel 

chocks and will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel chocks.   

 36. Northey has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of motorcycle wheel 

chocks including the Black Widow Wheel Chock and several other models of wheel chocks and 

will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel chocks.   

 37. ERT Chocks has made, sold and/or offered to sell various models of motorcycle 

wheel chocks and will continue to make, use, sell and/or offer for sale said motorcycle wheel 

chocks.  

 38. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely to 

be evidentiary support that Defendants have directly infringed and have actively induced 

infringement of the ‘310 patent by reason of said offer for sale and sale of said wheel chocks.   

 39. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely to 

be evidentiary support that Defendants’ infringement of the ‘310 patent has been deliberate and 

willful.   
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 40. By reason of the infringement by Defendants alleged herein, T.C. Development has 

been and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless said infringement is enjoined by this Court.  

TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT, UNFAIR COMPETITION, FALSE ADVERTISING, 
DECEPTIVE TRADE PRACTICE, TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH 
PROSPECTIVE BUSINESS ADVANTAGE, AND RELATED COUNTS: 

 
 41. T.C. Development is the owner by assignment of the federally registered 

trademark CONDOR, Reg. No. 2,664,230, registered December 17, 2002.  A copy of the 

Registration Certificate and recordation of assignment for the CONDOR® trademark is attached 

as Exhibit C.   

 42. The CONDOR® trademark has been in use in interstate commerce on or in 

connection with T.C. Development’s patented motorcycle support stand, also known as a wheel 

chock, since at least as early as April 25, 2002.   

 43. A number of different models of the patented CONDOR® wheel chocks have 

been advertised and sold throughout the United States through T.C. Development’s website, at 

many national and local motorcycle trade shows and consumer shows, through independent 

distributors, on EBay and through a variety of retail outlets.  CONDOR® wheel chocks are 

advertised in numerous national motorcycle magazines.   

 44. Since their introduction and continuing to date CONDOR® wheel chocks have 

enjoyed great success in the marketplace due both to the patented design of the CONDOR® 

wheel chocks and to extensive and consistence use of the distinctive CONDOR® trademark.   

 45. Through the extensive use and advertising of the CONDOR® wheel chocks the 

CONDOR® trademark has acquired valuable good will.  The CONDOR® trademark is 

recognized by the consuming public as an indicator of high quality products from a single source.  

Tortious Acts by Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause, and Northey:  
 
 46. None of the Defendants currently sell or distribute CONDOR® wheel chocks.  
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None of the Defendants are related to, affiliated, or associated in any manner with Plaintiff.  

Further, Defendants are not licensed by Plaintiff to use Plaintiff’s trademark.   

 47. Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause, and Northey’s use of T.C. 

Development’s registered CONDOR® trademark is not authorized by Plaintiff.   

 48. Each of the Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause, and Northey is using the 

registered CONDOR® trademark in meta tags and other searchable aspects of their websites 

such that searches in Google and other Internet search engines for “condor wheel chock,” 

“condor chock” and “condor” find the various websites owned and operated by defendants.   

 49. If the links found by the above Internet searches are followed, the websites owned 

and operated by Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey  respectively shown the CONDOR® 

product, but then at the end of the page indicate that it is “discontinued” and offer other wheel 

chocks sold by Defendants in its place.   

 50. Discount Ramps and/or Lederhause have used the CONDOR® trademark to 

solicit customers for their competing products on at least the following websites: 

www.motorcycleramps.com, www.discountramp.com, www.discountramps.com, and 

www.discount-trailers.com.  Searches of the CONDOR® trademark within several other 

websites owned and/or operated by Discount Ramps or Lederhause direct consumers to the 

www.motorcycleramps.com, www.discountramp.com, www.discountramps.com, and 

www.discount-trailers.com.   

 51. Northey  has used the CONDOR® trademark to solicit customers for its 

competing products on at least the following website www.rampconnection.com.   

 52. Searches in the Google search engine for “condor chock” and “condor wheel 

chock” also found hits in BizRate and Nextag sales website for the apparent sale of CONDOR® 

wheel chock by Discount Ramps.  The links associated with these advertisements are to the 
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websites owned and operated by Discount Ramps and/or Lederhause.  If the link is followed, 

consumers are informed that the CONDOR® wheel chock is discontinued and Defendants’ 

competing wheel chocks are offered in its place.   

 53. Searches within the various websites owned by Discount Ramps and/or 

Lederhause for “Condor” link the consumer with a page displaying and advertising CONDOR® 

wheel chocks.  At the end of the advertisement the consumer is informed that CONDOR® wheel 

chocks are discontinued and Defendants’ competing products are offered in its place.   

 54. Many of the competing wheel chocks offered by Defendants Discount Ramps, 

Lederhause, and Northey instead of the CONDOR® wheel chock infringe upon the patents of 

T.C. Development, as set forth above.   

 55. Discount Ramps and/or Lederhause has also placed the CONDOR® trademark 

within its various EBay product listings and descriptions such that consumers searching for 

CONDOR® wheel chocks within EBay are directed to Discount Ramps EBay listings.   

 56. Discount Ramps and/or Lederhause have used the CONDOR® trademark in 

advertisements placed in national motorcycle magazines, as shown in Exhibit D.  Discount 

Ramps and/or Lederhause do not sell Condor wheel chocks.  Individuals answering 

advertisements by calling the toll free phone number in the advertisement are told that 

CONDOR® wheel chocks are no longer available.  Individuals visiting the websites listed in the 

advertisement are informed that the CONDOR® wheel chocks are discontinued.  If the Discount 

Ramps’ salesman is asked where CONDOR® wheel chocks can be purchased, they are informed 

that Condor is out of business.   

 57. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause, and Northey were 

aware of and familiar with Plaintiff’s CONDOR® trademark before placing their confusing and 
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deceptive advertisements, web and EBay listings utilizing the CONDOR® trademark to solicit 

business for Defendants’ products.   

 58. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey were 

aware of the fact that they did not sell CONDOR® wheel chocks at the time the various 

advertisements were placed and when the CONDOR® wheel chocks were added to the website 

and that these advertisements and web listings were placed solely for the purpose of causing a 

likelihood of confusion, causing initial interest confusion and to improperly and illegally divert 

consumers looking for CONDOR® wheel chocks to Defendants’ websites and then to deceive 

such consumers into believing that CONDOR® wheel chocks were no longer available for sale 

anywhere.   

 59. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s 

infringing use of the CONDOR® trademark has been willful in that these Defendants developed 

and placed their confusing and deceptive advertisements, web and EBay listings utilizing the 

CONDOR® trademark deliberately in order to trade on the good will associated with the 

CONDOR® trademark owned by Plaintiff and to divert and misappropriate customers and 

business from Plaintiff.   

 60. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey’s 

activities in paragraphs 53-66 occurred when these Defendants were aware that they did not sell 

and did not intend to sell CONDOR® wheel chocks and these activities did not begin until after 

Plaintiff continued to assert its patent infringement claims against Discount Ramps and after 

Plaintiff has such infringing listings removed from eBay.   
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 61. After reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, there is likely 

to be evidentiary support that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s false and 

misleading advertising activities increased after T.C. Development acted to remove such 

infringing products from eBay, using the proper eBay procedures for such removal. 

 62. After reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, there is likely 

to be evidentiary support that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey acted in 

combination, associated, agreed, mutually undertook and acted in concert to willfully and/or 

maliciously injure Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s reputation, trade and business to compel Plaintiff to 

forego its claims of patent infringement against Defendants.   

COUNT III 
Trademark Infringement And False Designation of Goods 

 
 63. Paragraphs 1-62 are incorporated herein by reference.   

 64. Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s unauthorized use in 

commerce of Plaintiff’s registered CONDOR® trademark in connection with the sale, offering 

for sale, distribution, and advertising of these Defendants’ products has caused and is likely to 

cause confusion, mistake, and deception as to an affiliation, connection, or associate between 

Plaintiff and Defendants in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1) and 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).   

 65. Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s unauthorized use in 

commerce of Plaintiff’s registered CONDOR® trademark in connection with the sale, offering 

for sale, distribution, and advertising of these Defendants’ products has caused and is likely to 

cause confusion, mistake, and deception as to origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendants’ 

products in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1) and 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).   

 66. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support to show that there has been actual confusion by the public 
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between Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s products and Plaintiff’s 

products.   

 67. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support to shown that the conduct by Defendants Discount Ramps, 

Lederhause and Northey alleged herein was willful and intentional.   

 68. By reason of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey’s acts alleged 

as above, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer damage and injury to its business 

reputation and goodwill, and will sustain serious loss of revenue and profits in an indeterminate 

amount.   

 69. Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and 

Northey will continue to commit the acts complained herein, all to the immediate and irreparable 

harm to Plaintiff.  Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.   

COUNT IV 
Unfair Competition and Deceptive Trade Practices 

 
 70. Paragraphs 1-62 are incorporated herein by reference.   

 71. The aforesaid acts of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey 

constitute unfair competition, deceptive trade practices, and fraudulent representations under 

federal law and the common law of the State of Wisconsin.   

 72. By reason of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s acts as 

alleged above, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer damage and injury to its business, 

reputation and good will and will sustain serious loss of revenues and profits in an indeterminate 

amount.   

 73. After reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is likely 

to be evidentiary support to show that the conduct by Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause 
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and Northey alleged herein was willful and intentional.   

 74. Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and 

Northey will continue to do the acts complained of herein all to the irreparable harm of Plaintiff.  

Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.   

COUNT V 

Wisconsin Fraudulent Representations and Improper Business Practices 

 75. Paragraphs 1-62 are incorporated herein by reference.   

 76. The aforesaid acts of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey 

constitute violations of Wisconsin statutes Wis. Stat. §§ 100.18.   

 77. By reason of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s acts as 

alleged above, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer damage and injury to its business, 

reputation and good will and will sustain serious loss of revenues and profits in an indeterminate 

amount.   

 78. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support to show that the conduct by Defendants Discount Ramps, 

Lederhause and Northey alleged herein was willful and intentional.   

 79. Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and 

Northey will continue to do the acts complained of herein all to the irreparable harm of Plaintiff.  

Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.   

 
COUNT VI 

INJURY TO BUSINESS, RESTRAINT OF WILL 
 

 80. Paragraphs 1-62 are incorporated herein by reference.   

 81. The aforesaid acts of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey 

constitute violations of Wisconsin statute Wis. Stat. §§ 134.01.   
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 82. By reason of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and Northey’s acts as 

alleged above, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer damage and injury to its business, 

reputation and good will and will sustain serious loss of revenues and profits in an indeterminate 

amount.   

 83. After a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery, there is 

likely to be evidentiary support to show that the conduct by Defendants Discount Ramps, 

Lederhause  and Northey alleged herein was willful and intentional.   

 84. Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause and 

Northey will continue to do the acts complained of herein all to the irreparable harm of Plaintiff.  

Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law.   

 WHEREFORE, T.C. Development prays:  

 a. For a judgment that Defendants have infringed one or more claims of United 

States Patent No. RE42,971.   

 b. For a judgment that Defendants’ infringement of one or more claims of United 

States Patent No. RE42,971 has been willful and deliberate.   

 c. That Defendants and their agents, employees, privies, successors, and assigns, all 

persons and entities holding by, through or under them, and those acting for or on their behalf, in 

accordance with 35 U.S.C. § 283, be preliminarily and permanently enjoined from further 

infringement of United States Patent No. RE42,971.   

 d. That Defendants account for and pay to T.C. Development all damages caused to 

T.C. Development by their infringement of United States Patent No. RE42,971 and in accordance 

with 35 U.S.C. § 284 that such damages be trebled in view of the deliberate and willful nature of 

the infringement of such patent.   

 e. That T.C. Development be granted pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on 
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the damages caused to it by reason of Defendants’ infringement of United States Patent No. 

RE42,971.   

 f. That T.C. Development be granted reasonable attorneys’ fees, in accordance with 

35 U.S.C. § 285, in view of the deliberate and willful nature of the infringement of United States 

Patent No. RE42,971 by Defendants.   

 g. For a judgment that Defendants have infringed one or more claims of United 

States Patent No. 6,575,310.   

 h. For a judgment that Defendants’ infringement of one or more claims of United 

States Patent No. 6,575,310 has been willful and deliberate.   

 i. That Defendants and their agents, employees, privies, successors, and assigns, all 

persons and entities holding by, through or under them, and those acting for or on their behalf, in 

accordance with 35 U.S.C. § 283, be preliminarily and permanently enjoined from further 

infringement of United States Patent No. 6,575,310.   

 j. That Defendants account for and pay to T.C. Development all damages caused to 

T.C. Development by their infringement of United States Patent No. 6,575,310 and in accordance 

with 35 U.S.C. § 284 that such damages be trebled in view of the deliberate and willful nature of 

the infringement of such patent.   

 k. That T.C. Development be granted pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on 

the damages caused to it by reason of Defendants’ infringement of United States Patent No. 

6,575,310.   

 l. That T.C. Development be granted reasonable attorneys’ fees, in accordance with 

35 U.S.C. § 285, in view of the deliberate and willful nature of the infringement of United States 

Patent No. 6,575,310 by Defendants.   

 m. Declare that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey have 
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infringed Plaintiff’s federally registered and common law rights as set forth herein under 15 

U.S.C. § 1051 et seq.; have engaged in unfair competition and deceptive trade practices; have 

engaged in False Advertising; and have violated Wisconsin Statutes Wis. Stat. §§ 100.18 and 

134.01.   

 n. Order that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey and all their 

employees, servants, agents, and persons in active concert with them be permanently enjoined 

from displaying, advertising, promoting, selling or offering for sale products using Plaintiff’s 

registered CONDOR® mark, any other marks that are confusingly similar to the CONDOR® 

mark, or otherwise infringing Plaintiff’s trademarks and other proprietary rights;  

 o. Order the impounding for destruction all products, labels, packages, signs, 

advertisements, brochures, promotional materials, stationary and other written materials which 

bear the CONDOR® mark, or any designation confusingly similar to the CONDOR® mark 

together with all plates, molds, matrices and other means and material for marking and for 

reproducing the same;  

 p. Order that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey must for a 

period of 6 months place the following statement on the home page and the main wheel chock 

page of its websites:  

 CONDOR® wheel chocks can be purchased from:  
 T.C. Development & Design, Inc. 
 210 W. Stephanie Dr. 
 Cortland, IL 60112 
 Fax: 815-754-7419 
 To Order: 1-800-461-1344 
 www.condor-lift.com 
 
 q. Order that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey respond to all 

persons making telephone inquiries for CONDOR® wheel chocks by directing the caller to 

Plaintiff’s website (www.condor-lift.com) and by providing Plaintiff’s toll-free telephone 
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number (1-800-461-1344).   

 r. Order that Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey must take all 

actions necessary to ensure that the Google and all other Internet search engines remove any links 

between Plaintiff’s CONDOR® trademark and the Defendants’ websites.   

 s. Order an accounting of Defendants Discount Ramps, Lederhause  and Northey’s 

profits and award Plaintiff its actual and/or statutory damages including increased damages for 

these Defendants’ willful violation of Plaintiffs’ rights;  

 t. Order that Plaintiff be awarded monetary relief in an amount to be fixed by the 

Court in its discretion as just, including:  

i. All profits received by Defendants from sales and revenues of any kind 

made as a result of its infringing actions; and  

ii. All damages sustained by Plaintiff as a result of Defendants’ acts of 

infringement, and that such damages be trebled pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1117;  

 u. Award Plaintiff punitive damages for the willful and wanton nature of 

Defendants’ acts equal to at least three times Plaintiff’s actual or statutory damages;  

 v. Award Plaintiff interest, cost, and attorney’s fee; and  

 w. That T.C. Development be granted such other and further relief as the equity of 

the case may require and the Court may deem just and proper.   
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REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL 

 Plaintiff requests a trial by jury for all issues triable to a jury.   

Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
 
Date: March 14, 2012    By: ______/s/ KA Rheintgen_____________ 
       Kathleen A. Rheintgen 
       HUSCH BLACKWELL LLP 
       120 S. Riverside Plaza, 22nd Floor 
       Chicago, Illinois 60606 
       (312) 655-1500 
 
       Michael J. Hanrahan 
       Wis. Bar No. 1019483 
       FOX, O’NEILL & SHANNON, S.C.,  
       622 North Water Street 
       Milwaukee, WI 53202 
       (414) 273-3939 
    
       Attorneys for Plaintiff 
       T.C. DEVELOPMENT & DESIGN, INC. 
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